
 

1 

 

 

 
 

Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 
DATE:  August 29, 2023 

 

TO:     Board of Zoning and Adjustments:   Delayne Dean, 

Chair, Brad Townsend, Chester Ayers, George Allen, Michael 

Maurer, and Mark McCurry 

 

       BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

August 29, 2023 

Pre-meeting – 3:30 p.m. (7th Floor) 

Meeting – 4:00 p.m. (Council Chambers) 



 

2 

 

 

Table of Contents 

 
MINUTES JULY 2023 ..................................................................................................................................................... 3 

AGENDA................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

CASE NO. 1 51413TH AVE. NW ................................................................................................................................ 9 

CASE NO. 2 303 BELTLINE PL SW .......................................................................................................................... 10 

DIGRAM .................................................................................................................................................................. 11 
SIGN PERMIT ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 

CASE NO. 3 920 WEST MOULTON ST. ................................................................................................................... 13 

DIAGRAM ................................................................................................................................................................ 14 
EXISTIN SIGN ........................................................................................................................................................... 15 

CASE NO. 4 2302 CUMBERLAND CT. SW ............................................................................................................... 16 

SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 17 
PICTURE .................................................................................................................................................................. 18 
PICTURE 1 ................................................................................................................................................................ 19 
PICTURE 2 ................................................................................................................................................................ 20 
PICTURE 3 ................................................................................................................................................................ 21 
PICTURE 4 ................................................................................................................................................................ 22 
PICTURE 5 ................................................................................................................................................................ 23 
SOUTH ELEVATION .................................................................................................................................................. 24 
NORTH ELEVATION.................................................................................................................................................. 25 
EAST & NORTH ELEVATION ..................................................................................................................................... 26 

CASE NO. 5 415 10TH AVE NW .............................................................................................................................. 27 

SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 28 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

Minutes July 2023 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:     Delayne Dean, Mr. Brad Townson, Mr. Chester Ayers, 

         

SUPERNUMERARIES:       Mr. J. Michael Maurer, Mr. Mark McCurry 

 

COPIED TO:       Mr. George Allen       

 

OTHERS PRESENT:       Mrs. Ruth Priest, Asst. City Attorney 

        Mr. Tommie Williams, Planning Department 

        Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 

        Mrs. Nancy Whiteside. Recorder 

         

 

Chair, Delayne Dean called the meeting to order at 4:0 p.m. in the council chambers on the first 

floor at City Hall.   

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, called the roll. 

 

The minutes from the June 2023 meeting were approved   Mr. Chester Ayers motioned to 

approve the minutes. Mr. Brad Townson seconded the motion. On a voice vote, the motion 

carried.  

 

CASE NO. 1 

Application and appeal of K.L. Enterprises, for a use permitted on appeal, from Section 25-12 of 

the Zoning Ordinance in order to build an apartment complex located at 2409 Beltline Rd. SW. 

This request is conditional that the property is approved to be rezoned to an R-4 Multifamily 

Residential Zoning District. 

Mr. Douglas McCullough presented this case to the Board. Mr. McCullough stated K.L 

Enterprises is wanting to have the zoning changed for the property located at 2409 Beltline Rd 

SW from a M-1A Expressway Commercial Zoning District to a R-4 Multifamily Zoning District 

in order to build a hotel. 

 

Chair Dean stated to Mr. McCullogh that this Board cannot rezone property. That is the right of 

the city council but, this Board can approve the use, if the property is approved to be rezoned. 

Mr. McCullough understood. 

 

Chair Dean stated to Mr. McCullogh that the property is contingent to annexation by the city 

council, but must be sub-divided by the county and be assigned a new zoning district to a M-1A 

by the Planning Department. Mr. McCullough understood. 

 

Chair Dean asked for questions from the Board or the public. 

 

There were no comments. 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 



 

4 

 

Mr. Tommie Williams, Planning Department, stated he approved the motion with the conditions 

that annexation by the city council is approved and, the property is sub-divided by the county 

and is assigned a new zoning district to a M-1A by the City Council. 

 

Mr. Chester Ayers motioned to approve this case with the conditions that the property is sub-

divided by the county, annexation is approved the city council and, assigned a new zoning 

district to a M-1A by the City Council. Mr. Mark McCurry seconded the motion. On a roll-call 

vote of 5-0 the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

Application and appeal of Davenport Family Dentistry and Decatur Family Eye Care for a 

variance to Sections 25-77(e) (4), 25-77 (e) (5), 25-76 (p), and 25-72 (7) to construct an off 

premise business center sign in a B-2 General Business District. These properties are located at 

2020 Stratford Ct. SE and 2026 6th Ave. SE. 

Dr. Paul Bishop presented this case to the Board. Dr. Bishop stated his name was Dr. Paul 

Bishop and his address is 2034 Stratford Court SE. 

Jonathan Davis owner of Decatur Family Eye Care, Matthew 6:22 Properties also presented. Dr. 

Davis stated his business address was 2026 6th Avenue SE. 

Dr. Bishop stated that he and Dr. Davis were requesting to have a 15 foot setback variance to 

place a joint sign which is presented in the paper work. 

Dr. Bishop also stated there were questions about off premise signs and where the property line 

is located. 

Dr. Bishop stated, based on where he and Dr. Davis see the property line that the line goes 

diagonally as opposed to perpendicular. 

Dr. Bishop stated that the sign will sit on each of their properties and therefore the sign would 

not be an off premises sign. 

Dr. Bishop stated the existing Davenport Family Dentistry sign would be taken down, cleaned 

up, the landscaping updating the look and put in the joint sign. 

Ruth Priest, Asst. City Attorney, asked Dr. Davis to sign the application for the variance. Dr. 

Davenport was the only signer at the time the application was turned in to the office. 

Chair Dean asked for questions from the Board. 

Chair Dean asked about the hardship and why this request  

Dr. Davenport replied if the sign is moved further from where he and Dr. Davis has proposed 

placing the sign, one of them would not be on their property. 

Dr. Davenport stated Dr. Davis has previously been granted a zero setback variance and Dr. 

Davis’ sign would be closer to 6th Avenue. Dr. Davis acknowledged this was correct. 



 

5 

 

Dr. Davenport stated a compromise was trying to be made by putting the signs together, as 

opposed to having two separate signs having different designs and descriptions. 

Chair Dean asked if there was enough space on both properties for signage. Dr. Davenport 

replied yes. 

Chair Dean asked for other questions from the Board. 

Chair Dean asked for comments from the public. 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comment. 

Mr. Tommie Williams, Planning Department, had no comment. 

Mrs. Ruth Priest, Legal Department, stated for the city, there needs to be provisions, in a legal 

document, stating contingencies, in case there is a disagreement over what may happen, if 

someone buys the property or there is some other type of ownership or receivership. 

Mrs. Priest stated, there could be a lot of issues that arise that are not covered in the legal 

document which was turned in with the application packet. 

Mrs. Priest stated there needed to be some type of a more formally drafted legal document. This 

document would need to be filed with the probate judge. 

Chair Dean called for a motion. 

Mr. Brad Townsend motioned and Mike Maurer seconded the motion. On a roll-call vote of 4-1 

the motion carried. Chair Dean voted negative. 

Chair Dean explained to the applicants the motion was approved. 

Chair Dean stated, after the vote was complete, that the recommendation from the Legal 

Department, to obtain the legal agreement between Dr. Davenport and Dr. Davis needed to be 

followed. 

Chair Dean stated that the statement included in the packet was not legally sufficient to cover the 

future. Dr. Davenport replied in the affirmative. 

CASE NO. 3 

Application and appeal of Rodney and Cindy Darby, for a 8 foot setback variance from Section 

25-10.3 (1) (e) (2) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to construct a residence at 3915 Palomino 

Dr. SW. This property is located in a R-5 Residential District. 

Mr. Richard Humphry with Pugh, Wright, McAnally Inc. presented this case to the Board. Mr. 

Humphry stated his name was Richard Humphry and address was 310 8th Av NE Decatur. 

Mr. Humphry stated he was representing the Mr. and Mrs. Darby. 

Mr. Humphry stated the property at 3915 Palomino Dr. SW was plotted with a 28 foot setback 

and the request is to reduce the set-back to 20 feet in order to construct a new residence. 



 

6 

 

Mr. Humphry was asked by Chair Dean to amend the application to reflect an 8 foot setback 

variance. The application shows a 5 foot setback variance, Mr. Humphry made the correction. 

Chair Dean asked for questions from the Board or comments from the public, there were no 

comments. 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

Mr. Tommie Williams, Planning Department, had no comments. 

Mr. Brad Townsend motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Mike Maurer seconded the 

motion. On a roll-call vote of 5-0 the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 4 

Application and appeal of H.M. Nowlin for a 12 foot setback variance from Section 25-10.3 (1) 

(e) (2) and a variance from Section 25-10.3 (1) (b) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to build a 

new house and construct a driveway with a cut onto Castle Gate Blvd. SW located at 2201 

Sorrento Pl. SW. This property is located in a R-5 Residential Zoning District. 

Mr. H.M. Nowlin presented this case to the Board. Mr. Nowlin stated his office address is 118 

East Moulton St. and his name is H.M. Nowlin. 

Mr. Nowlin stated he was the owner and developer of Almon Place Subdivision. 

Mr. Nowlin stated the lot located at 2201 Sorrento Place Lot 32 was platted in 2006 and the 

original phase was platted in 2001. 

Mr. Nowlin stated this lot has a double front yard setback and narrows from front to back making 

it difficult to put a useable plan together to fit on the lot. 

Mr. Nowlin stated the purchasers of the lot has drawn house plans to fit on this lot if a 12-foot 

side yard setback is approved. 

Chair Dean asked for questions from the Board or comments from the public. There were no 

questions or comments. 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

Mr. Tommie Williams, Planning Department, stated that the driveway on Castlegate Boulevard 

would not change the aesthetics of the neighborhood since there are existing driveways on 

Castlegate Boulevard already.  

Mr. Chester Ayers motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Mike Maurer seconded the 

motion. On a roll-call vote of 5-0 the motion carried. 

 

Chair asked for any new business. There was no new business. 

 

Motion to adjourn by Mike Maurer. Everyone was in favor. Chair Dean adjourned the meeting. 

 



 

7 

 

 

____________________ 

DeLayne Dean, Chair 

 

 Time of adjournment 4:13 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8 

 

AGENDA August 2023 

The Board of Zoning Adjustment of the City of Decatur will hold a public meeting in the 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON THE FIRST FLOOR OF City Hall, 402 Lee Street NE, on 

Tuesday, August 30, 2023 at 4:00 p.m. And, also broadcast live on City of Decatur You Tube 

Channel at https://www.youtube.com/c/Cityof DecaturAl for the purpose of hearing the 

following applications and appeals at which time all interested parties are requested to the be 

present and will be given an opportunity to be heard. Questions may be submitted via email at 

bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

 

Application and appeal of Teresa Satchel for a determination as allowed in Section 25-93(d) and 

as defined in Article IV, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance in order to operate a 

Group Nighttime Care Facility operating  The property is located at 514 13th Av. NW in a R-4 

Multi-Family Residential District 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of Electronic Express for a 104 square foot variance from Section 25-

77(e) (2) in order to install a LED lit sign located at 303 Beltline Place SW. The property is 

located in a M-1A Expressway Commercial District. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of St. James Cumberland Presbyterian Church in America for a 10 foot 

setback variance from Section 25-78 (d) in order to install a LED lit sign located at 920 West 

Moulton St. The property is located in an ID Industrial District. 

 

CASE NO. 4 

 

Application and appeal of Dayton L. Spain and Mary M. Spain for a 10 foot setback variance 

from Section 25-20 in order to build an accessory building located at 2302 Cumberland Ct. SW. 

The property is located in a R-2 Single Family Residential District. 

 

CASE NO. 5 

 

Application and appeal of Luis Burgos for the following variances in order to build a new home. 

 19 foot setback variance from Section 25-10.10 (2) (c). 

 5 foot side yard setback variance from Section 25-10.10 (2) (e). 

The property is located at 415 10th Av NW located in a R-3 Single Residential District. 

 

 

 

mailto:bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov


 

9 

 

 
 

 

CASE NO. 1 51413TH AVE. NW 



 

10 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 2 303 BELTLINE PL SW 



 

11 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIGRAM 



 

12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

SIGN PERMIT 



 

13 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 3 920 WEST MOULTON ST. 



 

14 

 

 
 

 

 

 

DIAGRAM 



 

15 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

EXISTIN SIGN 



 

16 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 4 2302 CUMBERLAND CT. SW 



 

17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SURVEY 



 

18 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

PICTURE 



 

19 

 

 
 

 

 

 

PICTURE 1 



 

20 

 

 
 

 

 

 

PICTURE 2 



 

21 

 

 
 

 

 

 

PICTURE 3 



 

22 

 

 
 

 

 

 

PICTURE 4 



 

23 

 

 
 

 

 

 

PICTURE 5 



 

24 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH ELEVATION 



 

25 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NORTH ELEVATION 



 

26 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EAST & NORTH ELEVATION 



 

27 

 

 
 

 

CASE NO. 5 415 10TH AVE NW 



 

28 

 

 
 

 

 

SURVEY 


